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Subject: Re: Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center - Cebu, Inc_SEC Form 17A_24 August 2023
Date: Thursday, August 24, 2023 at 12:26:47 PM Philippine Standard Time
From: ICTD Submission
To: corpsecacemccebu@gmail.com

Thank you for reaching out to ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph!

Your submission is subject for VerificaWon and Review of the Quality
of the AZached Document only for Secondary Reports. The Official Copy
of the submiZed document/report with Barcode Page (ConfirmaWon
Receipt) will be made available a_er 7 working days via order through
the SEC Express at hZps://secexpress.ph/. For further clarificaWons,
please call (02) 8737-8888.

------------------------------------------------      NOTICE TO
COMPANIES      -----------------------------------------------

Please be informed of the reports that shall be filed only through
ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph.

Pursuant to SEC MC Circular No. 3 s 2021, scanned copies of the
printed reports with wet signature and proper notarizaWon shall be
filed in PORTABLE DOCUMENT FORMAT (pdf) through email at
ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph such as the following SECONDARY REPORTS:

    1. 17-A 6. ICA-QR 11. IHAR 16. 39-AR 21. Monthly Reports
    2. 17-C 7. 23-A 12. AMLA-CF 17. 36-AR 22. Quarterly Reports
    3. 17-L 8. 23-B 13. NPM 18. PNFS 23. LeZers
    4. 17-Q 9. GIS-G 14. NPAM 19. MCG 24. OPC (Alternate Nominee)
    5. ICASR 10. 52-AR 15.BP-FCLC 20.S10/SEC-NTCE-EXEMPT

Further, effecWve 01 July 2023, the following reports shall be
submiZed through hZps://efast.sec.gov.ph/user/login.

    1. FORM MC 18 7. CompleWon Report
    2. FORM 1 - MC 19 8. CerWficate-SEC Form MCG- 2009
    3. FORM 2- MC 19 9. CerWficate-SEC Form MCG- 2002, 2020 ETC.
    4. ACGR 10. CerWficaWon of AZendance in Corporate Governance
    5. I-ACGR 11. Secretary's CerWficate MeeWng of Board Directors
(Appointment)
    6. MRPT
Please be informed that the submission of the abovemenWoned eleven
(11) reports through the ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph shall no longer be
accepted. For further informaWon, please access this link NoWce for
guidance on the filing of reports:

Likewise, the following reports shall be filed through the Electronic
Filing and Submission Tool (eFAST) at
hZps://efast.sec.gov.ph/user/login :

   1. AFS 7. IHFS 13. SSF
   2. GIS 8. LCFS 14. AFS with Affidavit of No OperaWon

https://secexpress.ph/
https://efast.sec.gov.ph/user/login
https://efast.sec.gov.ph/user/login
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   3. BDFS 9. LCIF 15. AFS with NSPO Form 1,2, and 3
   4. FCFS 10. OPC_AO 16. AFS with NSPO Form 1,2,3 and 4,5,6
   5. FCIF 11. PHFS 17. FS - Parent
   6. GFFS 12. SFFS 18. FS – Consolidated

For the submission and processing of compliance in the filing of
Memorandum Circular No. 28 Series of 2020, please visit this link –
hZps://apps010.sec.gov.ph/

For your informaWon and guidance.

Thank you.

https://apps010.sec.gov.ph/
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

SEC FORM 17-A, AS AMENDED 

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 

 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141 

OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES 

1. For the fiscal year ended ...  December 31, 2022

2. SEC Identification Number … CS201421675

3. BIR Tax Identification No. ...008-899-890-000

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter…Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Cebu

Inc.

5. Philippines     6.      (SEC Use Only) 

Province, Country or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization 

 Industry Classification Code: 

7. 982 N. Bacalso Avenue, Brgy Basak, Pardo, Cebu City  6000 

Address of principal office Postal Code 

8. (032) 2655833

Issuer's telephone number, including area code

9. N/A

Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RSA

    Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock 

Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding 

..................................Founder.................................................................600.................................. 

..................................Common.............................................................172,340.............................. 

..................................Treasury.................................................................198.................................. 

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange.

Yes [  ]       No  [x]

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:

____________________________________                        ____________________

12. Check whether the issuer:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1 thereunder

or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of The 

Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period 

that the registrant was required to file such reports). 

Yes  [ x] No  [  ] 



February 2001 2 

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.

Yes  [x ]        No  [  ]

13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant. The

aggregate market value shall be computed by reference to the price at which the stock was sold,

or the average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days prior

to the date of filing.  If a determination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate

cannot be made without involving unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market value of

the common stock held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the basis of assumptions reasonable

under the circumstances, provided the assumptions are set forth in this Form.  (See definition of

"affiliate" in “Annex B”).

APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN  

INSOLVENCY/SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS PROCEEDINGS 

DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS: 

14. Check whether the issuer has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 17 of

the Code subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court or the

Commission.

Yes  [  ]   No  [  ]  Not applicable [ x] 
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PART I - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

 Item 1. Business 

A. Business Development

Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center – Cebu, Inc. (herein referred to as the “Company”) was 

organized and incorporated under the Philippine laws and registered with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission on November 7, 2014 under SEC Registration No. CS201421675. The Company’s primary 

purpose is to establish, maintain, operate, own and manage hospitals, medical and related healthcare 

facilities and business such as but without restriction to clinical laboratories, diagnostic centers, 

ambulatory clinic, condo-hospital, scientific research institutions and services which shall provide 

medical, surgical, nursing, therapeutic, paramedic or similar care, provided that purely professional, 

medical or surgical services shall be performed by duly qualified and licenses physicians or surgeons 

who may or who may not be connected with the hospitals and whose services shall be freely and 

individually contracted by the patients. 

The registered office address of the Company is located 982 N. Bacalso Avenue, Basak Pardo, Cebu 

City. The Company has yet to start its commercial operations and is now on the final stage of its 

construction of the medical facility (hospital). The hospital building includes leasable clinical facilities for 

medical and dental practitioners, who are shareholders of the Company. 

The Company’s secondary license to sell its common shares to the public pursuant to Section 12 of the 

Securities Regulation Code (SRC) was approved on December 27, 2018. 

ACE Medical Center - Cebu has set up a tertiary health care facility with an organized, systematic, cost-

effective, sympathetic, and holistic approach to its goal in providing the best quality and justifiable 

medical services to its clients and stakeholders. ACE Medical Center - Cebu is an 8-storey 175-bed 

capacity hospital with a 3 level basement parking and a helipad, with total floor area of 25,325sq.m. 

constructed in a 3,948sq.m. property located in the center of South Cebu City, along N. Bacalso Ave., 

Barangay Basak Pardo. It is a multidisciplinary specialty medical facility that houses medical specialists 

who are subscribers to the capital stock of the Corporation. The intended and considered markets for 

its shares are mostly medical specialists and individuals who are related to medical specialists.  

The Company’s initial operations began on December 26, 2020. It is now fully functional except for the 

Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) facility, which will be installed sometime in 2023. The hospital 

building includes leasable medical facilities for medical and dental practitioners who are shareholders 

of the Company. There are 56 leasable spaces for medical and dental practitioners.   

Competition and Business Analysis 

The Company belongs to the industry which caters to the need of the public and medical specialists for 

hospital facilities. There are no recognized trends within such industry. The geographic area of 

competition is within Cebu City and over the five (5) kilometer radius to the north and the south where 

the following hospitals are operating: 

HOSPITAL LOCATION BED CAPACITY CATEGORY LEVEL 

CLASSIFICATION 

(PHIC list) 

St Anthony 

Mother & Child 

Hospital  

Mambaling 25 Public Level I 

Adventist 

Hospital 

San Nicolas 100 Private Level II 
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St. Vincent 

General Hospital 

Sambag I  100 Private Level II 

Sacred Heart 

Hospital 

Sambag II 150 Private Level II 

Chong Hua 

Hospital 

Capitol 660 Private Level III 

Cebu Doctors’ 

University 

Hospital 

Capitol 300 Private Level III 

Cebu South 

Medical Center 

(formerly Talisay 

District Hospital) 

Talisay 250 Public Level II 

Vicente Sotto 

Memorial Medical 

Center 

Sambag II 1,200 Public Level III 

Cebu Velez 

General Hospital 

Cogon – Ramos 200 Private Level III 

Visayas 

Community 

Medical Center 

Cogon – Ramos 200 Private Level III 

The Company’s bigger competitors are located in the north of Cebu City; on the other hand, 

the Company’s hospital is located in the southern part where it will be directly competing with only the 

smaller hospitals. The reasonable price, quality of medical care and facilities of the Company will be its 

edge over its competitors. 

The Company is not expected to be dependent upon one or a limited number of suppliers for 

its hospital equipment, essential medical supplies, and other supplies. The following are the Company’s 

principal suppliers:  

1. Zuellig Pharmaceutical Corporation – pharmaceutical and other medical supplies

2. Metro Drug, Inc. – pharmaceutical, laboratory reagents and other medical supplies

3. Zion Diagnostics, Inc. – laboratory reagents

4. Zafire Distributors, Inc. – laboratory reagents and supplies

5. Metro Gaisano Ayala – food and kitchen supplies

6. Ellegold Marketing – personal protective equipment and other medical supplies

7. Health Solutions, Inc. – medical supplies

8. Prince Warehouse Club – food and kitchen supplies

9. Cebu RTK Marketing – laboratory and medical supplies

10. Berovan Marketing – medical supplies

11. People’s Educational Supply – office supplies

12. Visayas Educational Supply – office supplies

13. Cebu Progress Commercial, Inc. – office furniture

14. Mandaue Foam – office furniture

15. Choitango Medical Solutions Enterprises – contrast media

Government Regulation 

ACE Medical Center - Cebu, Inc. has secured the necessary permits to operate the hospital from the 
national and local government entities particularly the License to Operate (LTO) from the DOH, the 
Environmental Compliance Certificate and Hazardous Waste Generators ID from DENR, the Food and 
Drug Administration license for both the Pharmacy and Radiology Unit, the PDEA license for the 
regulated and controlled drugs, and the Business Permit and Sanitary Permit from the Cebu City 
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Government. It has also secured accreditation with the Philippine Health Insurance Corporation (PHIC) 
and the Philippine Hospital Association. 

All licenses and accreditations have been renewed. 

The Company is strictly complying with the necessary permits of the DENR and has spent 

approximately PHP 350,000.00 for the year 2022 for the hazardous waste it has generated.  

Total Number of Employees 

Total Number of Full Time-Employees (As of December 31, 2022): 

CBA Non-CBA Total 

Rank and File - 237 237 

Supervisors - 6 6 

Managers and Top 
Management 

- 3 3 

   Total - 246 246 

The hospital is expected to hire more employees once the occupancy rate of the hospital increases 

in the coming months.  

Risk Management 

Difficulty to Collect from Patients – The Company (like all other hospitals) has allocated funds for 
possible uncollectible revenues from some patients and “charity” cases. It has also tapped PCSO, 
DSWD, and CHAMP to help indigent patients. The Company has affiliated itself with the different 
HMOs available in Cebu City to mitigate or reduce promissory notes. 

Limited Resources/Losses – The Issuer mitigates such risk through availing of the credit line facility 
with the Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) totaling to PHP 900,000,000.00 (500M for Hospital 
Building/Building equipment, 350M for medical/hospital equipment and 50M for the short-term 
loan). As of December 31, 2022, the company has fully drawn the existing credit line facility from 
LBP. 

"Landbank of the Philippines 
The Company obtained credit lines with various drawdown dates from Landbank of the Philippines 
(LBP) on September 1, 2016 amounting to PHP 465 million payable in ten (10) years and PHP 35 
million payable in seven (7) years, and on August 24, 2019 amounting to PHP 350 million payable 
in seven (7) years. The purpose of the PHP 465 million term loan was to finance the construction 
of the hospital building while the PHP 35 million and PHP 350 million term loans were for the 
acquisition of various medical machines and equipment. In 2021, the Company availed of its 
preapproved Short-term Loan amounting to PHP 50 million to use in the hospital operations.” 

Key Personnel – To prevent attrition, the Issuer intends to provide a competitive compensation 
package and full benefits for its Management and Key Officers. The Human Resources Department 
will likewise maintain a program that will enhance and develop the career path of key officers and 
employees to ensure continued loyalty to the Company. 

Government Regulations – The Company complies with local and national rules and regulations. If 
the Company fails to comply with a rule or regulation, it may be subject to fines or other penalties, 
or its permit or license may be revoked or suspended.  

Healthcare infections – The Company has put in place an Infection Control Service, guided by the 
Infection Control Committee, that implements and continually updates infection control policies. 
Likewise, it has set up a Covid Task Force to help the Infection Control Service in dealing with the 
pandemic. The role of the Covid Task Force to ensure that the best practices in addressing Covid-
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19 is put in place such as having a separate floor for Covid positive or probable patients and the 
like. The Company has also provided its employees and doctors the necessary personal protective 
equipment (masks, haz-mat, goggles, gloves, face shields, etc.) to protect them from acquiring 
healthcare-related infections. Also, the hospital has nine (9) isolation units located at the following 
areas: emergency room (1), NICU (1), ICU (1) and the patient care floors (6). The 7th floor became 
the dedicated Covid wing for those with positive RT-PCR results and those waiting for their results. 

Disaster risks/pandemics – The Company has policies in place to guide its employees in the event 
of a disaster or pandemic. It has a Disaster Risk Management and Safety Committee, which meets 
regularly and oversees staff training. Fire and Earthquake drills are conducted annually with the 
guidance of the Bureau of Fire and Protection (BFP). In addition to the policies and trainings, the 
hospital is equipped with two (2) generators, a computer system with a Cloud back up and firewall 
to prevent loss of data and hacking, and adequate UPS to prevent auto shutdown and malfunction 
of equipment.  

As mentioned above, a task force was created to respond to the ongoing pandemic. The role of the 
task force is to protect the employees from getting the virus by conducting trainings on the proper 
donning and doffing of the personal protective equipment, basic healthcare protocols and the like. 

Hazardous material events, such as chemical/radiological exposure – The Company has policies 
in place to prevent chemical spills and radiological exposure. The staff are trained on how to handle 
chemicals to avoid spills and respond to possible chemical spills. Likewise, badges have been 
installed on equipment that are sources of radiation. These badges measure the level of radiation 
that the equipment is emitting hence leaks are immediately detected. All Radiology staff are given 
individual badges to measure their exposure to radiation. The Company has engaged the services 
of PASSI to collect its hazardous waste. Proper segregation of waste is also strictly implemented 
with the availability of the Materials Recovery Facility. 

Taxation – Existing tax rates may increase in the future or existing tax exemptions and deductions 
may likewise be revoked, adversely affecting the Company’s revenues. Similarly, such tax rates 
may decrease, or new exemptions and deductions may be created, to the Company’s benefit. 

Litigation/Administrative Actions – The Company may be exposed to litigation expenses relating to 
the hospital operations, matters involving its Board of Directors and Management, on policies 
implemented and its management decisions. The hospital being a corporation is also exposed to 
litigation involving its shareholders. A continued litigation or adverse decision may substantially 
affect the Company’s finances. 

The Company can mitigate said risk by engaging competent legal practitioners that are well versed 
with the issues and are able to protect the best interest of the Company. 

Item 2. Properties 

A. Principal Properties Owned

The following properties were acquired in the name of the Company: 

a) Land

Location Land Area Current and 

Intended Use 

Cost 

Center of South Cebu City, along 

N. Bacalso Ave., at Barangay

Basak Pardo, Cebu City

4,430 sq. 

m 

Operations PHP 

108,620,536.00 

b) Building

Asset Code Description Current and 

Intended Use 

Cost 
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8-storey building

with 3-level

basement parking

and helipad with a

floor area totaling

25,325 square

meters

Operations PHP 940,297,161.00 

c) Transportation Equipment

Asset Code Description Current and 

Intended Use 

Cost 

10033 Transportation Equipment Operations PHP 3,436,396 

d) Office Furniture and Equipment

Asset Code Description Current and 

Intended Use 

Cost 

10031 Office Furnitures, 

Fixtures and 

Equipment 

Operations PHP 12,316,051.00 

e) Dietary Tools and Equipment

Asset Code Description Current and 

Intended Use 

Cost 

Various Dietary 

Tools and 

Equipment 

Operations PHP 686,368.00 

f) Medical Equipment

Asset Code Description Current and 

Intended Use 

Cost 

10031 Various Medical 

Equipment 

Operations PHP 180,001,462.00 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

1. Civil Case No. R-CEB-18-01248-CV, Branch XI, Cebu City (Complaint for Declaration of Sale
in Installment as Subscription Contract, Declaration of Rights or Pre-Emption, and for
Attorney’s Fees) - Dax Matthew M. Quijano, Rosemarie P. Quijano, Eric Y. Cheung, Girlie
Cheung, Candice Joy A. Sia vs. ACE Medical Center-Cebu, Inc., Geanie Cerna-Lopez, Velma
T. Chan, Luisito R. Co, Maita Cruz, Roberto M. De Leon, Amado Manuel C. Enriquez Jr.,
Floram C. Limotlimot, Roland Mark M. Gigataras, Joy C. Luna, Nicolas S. Molon, Felix P.
Nolasco, Generoso M. Orillaza, Ronald L. Ramiro, Marietta T. Samoy and Evangeline Y.
Zozobrado

On March 7, 2018, complainants Dax Matthew M. Quijano, Rosemarie P. Quijano, Eric Y. 
Cheung, Girlie Cheung, Candice Joy A. Sia, through counsel filed a civil complaint against the 
Hospital and its Directors (as stated above) praying the Court to direct the defendants ACE 
Medical Center Cebu and its President and Corporate Secretary to issue the plaintiff’s 
Certificate of Stock and declare the sale in installment as subscription contract, to allow him to 
exercise pre-emptive rights to the increase in capital approved by the Board on November 12, 
2016.  

The Defendants have already filed their Answer to the Complaint. 
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We filed a Motion to Dismiss the Complaint for lack of interest of the plaintiffs to prosecute the 
case last August 5, 2020. A Judicial Dispute Resolution was scheduled but failed. Case is up 
for pre-trial conference. 

The judicial dispute resolution (JDR) failed. The case is up for pre-trial conference on April 13, 
2023 

2. Civil Case No. R-CEB-18-00601-CV, Branch XI, Cebu City (Complaint for Issuance of

Certificate of Stock, Declaration of Sale in Installment as Subscription Contract, Declaration of

Rights or Pre-Emption, and for Attorney’s Fees ) – Ferdinand P. Kionisala vs. Allied Care

Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Cebu, Inc., Geanie Cerna-Lopez, Velma T. Chan, Luisito R.

Co, Maita Cruz, Roberto M. De Leon, Amado Manuel C. Enriquez, Jr., Floram C. Limotlimot,

Roland Mark M. Gigataras, Joy C. Luna, Nicolas S. Molon, Felix P. Nolasco, Generoso M.

Orillaza, Ronald S. Ramiro, Marietta T. Samoy, and Evangeline Y. Zozobrado

On February 5, 2018, complainant Ferdinand P. Kionisala filed a civil complaint against the
Hospital and its Directors (as stated above) praying the Court to direct the defendants ACE
Medical Center Cebu and its President and Corporate Secretary to issue the plaintiff’s
Certificate of Stock and declare the sale in installment as subscription contract, to allow him to
exercise pre-emptive rights to the increase in capital approved by the Board on November 12,
2016.
The Defendants (based in Cebu) have already filed their Answer to the Complaint and Dr.
Kionisala has filed a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, but the same was opposed by the
defendants on May 15, 2018. The Court has not yet ruled on the plaintiff’s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment of May 2, 2018. Unless the Court resolves the Motion for Summary
Judgment by the plaintiff, the case will not move on.

The Defendants filed a Motion to Dismiss the case for failure of the plaintiff to prosecute for lack 
of interest. The case was scheduled for Pre-Trial on April 30, 2021. Pre-trial was terminated. 
Case is set for presentation of plaintiff’s evidence. 

The Court rendered on August 9, 2022 a partial summary judgement on plaintiff’s prayer for 
issuance of certificate of stock leaving the other issues sought for trial on the merits. However, 
instead of presenting his evidence plaintiff filed a motion to submit the case for decision based 
on legal issues through the filing of memorandum which is still pending for resolution.  

3. Special Civil Action Case No. R-CEB-18-08795-SC, Branch XI, Cebu City (For Mandamus to

Issue 100% Pre-Emptive Rights, Damages and for Attorney’s Fees)  - Leo T. Sumatra, Sps.

Stephen Paul M. Bergado and Conchita B. Bergado, Marie Davielene Beatriz Ong-Dy and

Leonard Matthew Dy, et. Al vs. Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Cebu, Inc.,

GeanieCerna-Lopez and Velma T. Chan

The Petitioners have filed a Special Civil Action case for Mandamus, to compel the
Respondents to immediately issue their 100% pre-emptive rights. The Petitioners claim they
are entitled to 10 shares based on their computation of 0.000083333 ownership multiplied by
120,000 (increase in Capital).

Respondents received the Court Order on 11 December 2018. On November 25, 2020 at 
8:30AM, a Judicial Dispute Resolution was conducted by RTC Branch 12, Cebu City via video 
conference hearing. Both parties did not come into an agreement. The Petitioners demanded 
PHP 600,000.00 from the Respondents. The case was scheduled for Pre-Trial on June 11, 
2021. Pre-trial was terminated. Case is set for presentation of petitioners’ evidence. 

Presentation of petitioners’ evidence. Petitioners have so far presented two (2) witnesses. 
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PART II – SECURITIES OF THE REGISTRANT 

A. Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder

Matters

(1) Market Information

The Company’s common equity are sold through its own internal staff.  The shares are sold in 

tranches for easier administration and on a first-come, first-served basis, subject to pre-qualification 

procedures. The high and low sales prices by quarter for the last two (2) years are as follows: 

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter 
1st 

Quarter 

Market Price 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2023 

High 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 

Low 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300.000 

The price as of March 30, 2023 (latest practicable trading date) is PHP 300,000.00. 

(2) Holders

There are approximately 1700 holders of common shares and 54 holders of founders’ shares 

of the Company as of 31 December 2022. 

TOP 20 STOCKHOLDERS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022 

No. NAME OF STOCKHOLDER 
NUMBER OF 

SHARE 
AMOUNT 

(PHP) 
% OF  

OWNERSHIP 

1. ENRIQUEZ, AMADO MANUEL, JR. C. 15,000 15,000,000 8.79% 

2. CHAN, VELMA T. 5,006 5,386,000 2.93% 

3. MOLON, NICOLAS S. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

4. MOLON, EDNA R. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

5. ZOZOBRADO, EVANGELINE Y. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

6. ZOZOBRADO, AGUSTIN A. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

7. CERNA-LOPEZ, GEANIE A. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

8. DE LEON, ROBERTO M. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

9. DE LEON, MARIA RHODORA G. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

10. LUNA, JOY C. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

11. LUNA, RODOLFO P. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

12. NOLASCO, FELIX P. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

13. NOLASCO, EULENIA R. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

14. ORILLAZA, GENEROSO M. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

15. ORILLAZA, MARISSA A. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

16. ENRIQUEZ, MARILYN R. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

17. CRUZ, MAITA C. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

18. CRUZ, JOHN JERLYN G. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

19. RAMIRO, RONALD L. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 

20. RAMIRO, JANE R. 2,500 2,500,000 1.46% 
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(3) Dividends

Dividend Information on the Two Most Recent Fiscal Years 

No dividends were issued in the last two (2) years since the Company does not have any retained 

earnings as it is still in its first year of operation. As of December 31, 2020, based on the loan 

agreement with the bank, a restriction was made limiting the company to pay dividends in the future 

unless appropriation is otherwise made as approved by the Board of Directors.  

There is no recent sale of unregistered or exempt securities. 

PART III.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

A. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The following table shows the financial highlights of the Company for the years then ended

December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020:

As  of December 31 

2022 2021 2020 

Income Statement Data 

   Revenue P   164,233,187 P  105,741,950 P - 

   Other Income 6,712,514 4,494,865 2,621,317 

   Cost of Sales and Services (186,321,195) (135,242,817) - 

   Operating expenses (51,744,032) (42,058,084) (28,601,626) 

   Finance cost (42,109,329) (49,120,972) (4,522,926) 

   Operating Loss (109,228,855) (116,185,058) (30,503,235) 

   Income tax benefit 20,497,372 19,294,890 6,752,178 

   Net Loss (88,731,483) (96,890,168) (23,751,057) 

Revenue 

On December 26, 2020, the Company launched the full commercial operations of its hospital 
building and facilities. 

Revenue generated for the year 2022 amounts ₱164.2M. This was from Hospital fees and sales of 
medicines, net of discounts. This increased by 55%. The Company is in its second year of 
operation, revenues are expected to be higher compared to its first year of operation in 2021. 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales and services in 2022 has increased by 38% or ₱51.1M. This was directly associated 
with the company’s operation. The major component of the cost of sales and services are medicines 
and supplies, depreciation, salaries and wages, utilities, professional fees and housekeeping. 

Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses increased by 23%. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in 
credit losses, utilities, taxes and licenses, repairs and maintenance, training and development, 
professional fee, amortization and office supplies. This is negated by decrease in directors’ 
allowances and officers’ compensation, transportation and travel, insurance, depreciation, 
meetings and conferences, bank service charges and miscellaneous. 
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Other income 

Other income for the year 2022 increase by 49.34% as compared with the year 2021. The increase 
was due significant increase in income from cafeteria which is directly related with the Company’s 
operation. This was negated by the decrease in interest income and miscellaneous income. 

Finance costs 

Finance cost decreased by 14.27%. This was due to partial settlement of loans and restructuring 
of loan balance due to request for deferment of loan payments in 2022. 

Income tax benefit increased by 6.23%. Though the loss in 2022 is lower than in 2021, the tax 
benefit in 2022 is higher due to the effect of CREATE Act in 2021 income tax.  

Loss for the year 

Loss for the year for the year 2022 is lower than losses suffered in 2021 by 8.42%. This was mainly 
due to the higher revenue and other income earned for the year coupled with decrease in finance 
cost. The Company is in its second year of operation, results of operation are expected to be more 
favorable compared to its first year of operation in 2021. To mitigate the losses, the Company has 
strengthened its marketing efforts and relationships with its Medical Staff to increase utilization 
which would translate to better revenue. 

Financial Condition 

Total assets decreased from ₱1.436B to ₱1.408B. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease 
in cash, subscription receivable, inventories and property and equipment. This was negated by the 
increase in trade and other receivables, prepayments and other currents assets, intangible assets 
and deferred tax assets.  

Cash decreased by ₱14.9M primarily due higher disbursements as compared with the collection 
for the period. Cost of sales and services and operating expenses are higher than revenue which 
resulted to loss for the period of ₱109M. The company acquired property and equipment and 
intangible asset amounting to ₱9.2M, made partial payment on loans payables and interest 
amounting to ₱54.4M.  These disbursements were partly funded by collection of subscription and 
additional loans and advances from shareholders. 

Gross trade and other receivables increased by ₱18.5M primarily due to increase in trade 
receivables from PhilHealth, HMO and patients. The increase in gross receivables were reduced 
by the increase in allowance for credit losses resulting to a net increase in trade and other 
receivables – net by ₱3.5M. 

Subscription receivable decreased by ₱18.6M. Collection for the period is higher than the additional 
partially paid subscriptions. 

The decrease in inventories by ₱6.6M pertains mainly to increase in consumption of hospital and 
laboratory supplies for the hospital operation. 

Prepayments and other current assets increased by ₱19.1M. This is primarily due to the increased 
in advanced payment made to suppliers for hospital equipment and supplies and increased in 
related VAT Input on purchases of goods and services. 

Property and equipment decreased by ₱2.62M. This was primarily due depreciation amounting to 
₱40M negated by the acquisition for the year amounting to ₱8.7M 

The increase in Intangible asset pertains mainly to the additions for the year negated by the 
amortization. 



 February 2001 12 

Deferred tax asset increased by ₱20.4M was due to the DTA recognizes for losses incurred in 
2022, DTA on additional credit losses for the year negated by the expiration of unapplied MCIT and 
NOLCO for the year 2019. 

Total liabilities increased by ₱37.6M. The increase was primarily due to increase trade and other 
payables, loans and advances from shareholders which was negated by partial payment of loans 
and retention payable. 

Trade and other payables increased by ₱19.4M mainly due to the increased in unpaid purchases 
to suppliers of goods and services and payable to government negated by the decrease in accrued 
expenses. 

The decreased in retention and professional fees payables amounting to ₱13.2M pertains mainly 
to the payment of retention payable. 

Loans payable represents interest-bearing loan from Banks in support of the construction of the 
Company’s hospital building, acquisition of hospital and medical equipment, transportation 
equipment and furniture and fixtures and permanent working capital requirement of the hospital 
operation. The net increase of ₱15.1M was due to the additional loan release of ₱27,500,000 in 
2022 net of the partial payment made on the principal. 

The increase of ₱16.3M in advances from shareholders was due to additional advances in 2022. 

The ₱65.84M decrease in the total equity is primarily due to the net loss incurred by the Company 
on its second year of operations and return of 23 common shares which was negated by additional 
subscriptions for the year. 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, 

2022 2022 2020 

1. Liquidity

a. Quick ratio -  capacity to cover its short-term

obligations using only its most liquid assets. 0.226:1 0.463:1 0.717:1 

 [(cash + receivables) / current 

liabilities] 

b. Current ratio - capacity to meet current obligations

out of its liquid assets. 0.522:1 0.840:1 1.015:1 

  (current assets / current liabilities) 

2. Solvency

a. Debt to equity ratio -  indicator of which group has

the greater representation in the 

assets of the Company. 

2.662:1 2.189:1   1.847:1 

 (total liabilities / equity) 

3. Profitability

a. Net profit margin - ability to generate surplus for

stockholder (0.540):1 (0.916):1 N/A 

    (net income / sales) 

b. Return on equity -   ability to generate returns on

investment of stockholders. (0.213):1 (0.208):1 (0.05):1 

 (net income / average equity) 

4. Leverage

a. Debt to total asset ratio - the proportion of total

assets financed by creditors. 0.73:1 0.69:1 0.649:1 
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 (total liabilities / total 

assets) 

b. Asset to equity ratio - indicator of the overall

financial stability of the Company. 3.662:1 3.189:1 2.847:1 

 (total assets / equity) 

5. Interest Rate Coverage Ratio

a. Interest rate coverage ratio - measure of the

company’s ability to meet its 

interest payments (1.594):1 (1.365):1 (5.744):1 

    (earnings before interest and taxes / interest 

expense) 

Remarks:  The Company was able to meet its interest 

payments.  

DECEMBER 31, 2022 COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 2021 

Changes in Operating Results 

On December 26, 2020, the Company launched the full commercial operations of its hospital 
building and facilities. Revenue generated for the year 2022 amounts ₱164.2M. This was from 
Hospital fees and sales of medicines, net of discounts. This increased by 55%. The Company is in 
its second year of operation, revenues are expected to be higher compared to its first year of 
operation in 2021. 

Cost of sales and services in 2022 has increased by 38% or ₱51.1M. This was directly associated 
with the company’s operation. The major component of the cost of sales and services are medicines 
and supplies, depreciation, salaries and wages, utilities, professional fees and housekeeping. 

Operating expenses increased by 23%. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in 
credit losses, utilities, taxes and licenses, repairs and maintenance, training and development, 
professional fee, amortization and office supplies. This is negated by decrease in directors’ 
allowances and officers’ compensation, transportation and travel, insurance, depreciation, 
meetings and conferences, bank service charges and miscellaneous. 

Other income for the year 2022 increase by 49.34% as compared with the year 2021. The increase 
was due significant increase in income from cafeteria which is directly related with the Company’s 
operation. This was negated by the decrease in interest income and miscellaneous income. 

Finance cost decreased by 14.27%. This was due to partial settlement of loans and restructuring 
of loan balance due to request for deferment of loan payments in 2022. 

Income tax benefit increased by 6.23%. Though the loss in 2022 is lower than in 2021, the tax 
benefit in 2022 is higher due to the effect of CREATE Act in 2021 income tax.  

Loss for the year for the year 2022 is lower than losses suffered in 2021 by 8.42%. This was mainly 
due to the higher revenue and other income earned for the year coupled with decrease in finance 
cost. The Company is in its second year of operation, results of operation are expected to be more 
favorable compared to its first year of operation in 2021. To mitigate the losses, the Company has 
strengthened its marketing efforts and relationships with its Medical Staff to increase utilization 
which would translate to better revenue. 

Changes in Financial Condition 

Total assets decreased from ₱1.436B to ₱1.408B. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease 
in cash, subscription receivable, inventories and property and equipment. This was negated by the 
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increase in trade and other receivables, prepayments and other currents assets, intangible assets 
and deferred tax assets.  

Cash decreased by ₱14.9M primarily due higher disbursements as compared with the collection 
for the period. Cost of sales and services and operating expenses are higher than revenue which 
resulted to loss for the period of ₱109M. The company acquired property and equipment and 
intangible asset amounting to ₱9.2M, made partial payment on loans payables and interest 
amounting to ₱54.4M.  These disbursements were partly funded by collection of subscription and 
additional loans and advances from shareholders. 

Gross trade and other receivables increased by ₱18.5M primarily due to increase in trade 
receivables from PhilHealth, HMO and patients. The increase in gross receivables were reduced 
by the increase in allowance for credit losses resulting to a net increase in trade and other 
receivables – net by ₱3.5M. 

Subscription receivable decreased by ₱18.6M. Collection for the period is higher than the additional 
partially paid subscriptions. 

The decrease in inventories by ₱6.6M pertains mainly to increase in consumption of hospital and 
laboratory supplies for the hospital operation. 

Prepayments and other current assets increased by ₱19.1M. This is primarily due to the increased 
in advanced payment made to suppliers for hospital equipment and supplies and increased in 
related VAT Input on purchases of goods and services. 

Property and equipment decreased by ₱2.62M. This was primarily due depreciation amounting to 
₱40M negated by the acquisition for the year amounting to ₱8.7M 

The increase in Intangible asset pertains mainly to the additions for the year negated by the 
amortization. 

Deferred tax asset increased by ₱20.4M was due to the DTA recognizes for losses incurred in 
2022, DTA on additional credit losses for the year negated by the expiration of unapplied MCIT and 
NOLCO for the year 2019. 

Total liabilities increased by ₱37.6M. The increase was primarily due to increase trade and other 
payables, loans and advances from shareholders which was negated by partial payment of loans 
and retention payable. 

Trade and other payables increased by ₱19.4M mainly due to the increased in unpaid purchases 
to suppliers of goods and services and payable to government negated by the decrease in accrued 
expenses. 

The decreased in retention and professional fees payables amounting to ₱13.2M pertains mainly 
to the payment of retention payable. 

Loans payable represents interest-bearing loan from Banks in support of the construction of the 
Company’s hospital building, acquisition of hospital and medical equipment, transportation 
equipment and furniture and fixtures and permanent working capital requirement of the hospital 
operation. The net increase of ₱15.1M was due to the additional loan release of ₱27,500,000 in 
2022 net of the partial payment made on the principal. 

The increase of ₱16.3M in advances from shareholders was due to additional advances in 2022. 

The ₱65.84M decrease in the total equity is primarily due to the net loss incurred by the Company 
on its second year of operations and return of 23 common shares which was negated by additional 
subscriptions for the year. 

The Company made an error in the recognition of cost of sales amounting to ₱10,694,933 in 2021 
resulting to overstatement of cost of sales and understatement of inventories account.  
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Certain items in the statements of financial position, statements of comprehensive income, 
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows and notes to financial statements 
have been restated to reflect the effect of the prior period adjustments.  

Below is the summary of the changes arising from restatement: 

2021 (Previously 

reported)

2021 (After 

restatement)

Increase 

(Decrease)

Statements of Financial Position

Inventories ₱ 17,909,672        ₱ 28,604,605        ₱ 10,694,933        

Total current assets 178,143,389      188,838,322      10,694,933        

Deferred tax assets 46,763,315        44,089,582        (2,673,733) 

Total non-current assets 1,250,402,890    1,247,729,157    (2,673,733) 

Total assets 1,428,546,279    1,436,567,479    8,021,200 

Accumulated deficits (192,481,641)     (184,460,441)     8,021,200 

Equity, net 442,451,065      450,472,265      8,021,200 

Total liabilities and equity 1,428,546,279    1,436,567,479    8,021,200 

Statements of Comprehensive Income

Cost of sales and services ₱ 145,937,750      ₱ 135,242,817      ₱ (10,694,933)       

Gross loss 40,195,800        29,500,867        (10,694,933)       

Loss before tax 126,879,991      116,185,058      (10,694,933)       

Income tax benefit 21,968,623        19,294,890        (2,673,733) 

Loss for the period 104,911,368      96,890,168        (8,021,200) 

Statements of Changes in Equity

Net loss for the year ₱ 104,911,368      ₱ 96,890,168        ₱ (8,021,200) 

Accumulated deficits (192,481,641)     (184,460,441)     8,021,200 

Equity, net 442,451,065      450,472,265      8,021,200 

Statements of Cash Flows

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Loss before tax ₱ (126,879,991)     ₱ (116,185,058)     ₱ 10,694,933        

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in:

Inventories (12,911,750)       ₱ (23,606,683)       ₱ (10,694,933)       

Cash used in operation (29,798,293)       (29,798,293)       - 

Net cash used in operating activities (79,399,429)       (79,399,429)       - 

DECEMBER 31, 2021 COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Changes in Operating Results 

On December 26, 2020, the Company launched the full commercial operations of its hospital 
building and facilities. Revenue generated for the year amounts ₱105.7M. This was from Hospital 
fees and sales of medicines. 

Cost of sales and services in 2021 has increased by 100% or ₱145.9M. This was directly associated 
with the company’s operation. The major component of the cost of sales and services are medicines 
and supplies, depreciation, salaries and wages, utilities, professional fees and housekeeping. 

Expenses in 2021 are higher compared to 2020 by 47.05%. The increase was attributable directly 
to the company’s operation which commence in 2021. This was primarily due to the increased in 
salaries and wages and benefits, security services, depreciation, recognition of credit losses, 
utilities, repairs and maintenance, meeting and conferences, transportation and travel, office 
supplies, insurance, bank service charge, amortization, training and development and 
miscellaneous expenses. 
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Other income for the year 2021 increase by 71.47% as compared with the year 2020. The increase 
was due to income from cafeteria which is directly related with the Company’s start of operation. 
This was negated by the decrease in interest income and miscellaneous income. 

Finance cost increased by 986.04%. Finance cost in 2021 were charged directly to operation. While 
in previous period these were capitalized to property and equipment, since these loans were used 
to finance the construction of Hospital building and equipment. 

Income tax benefit increased by 225.36%. This is primarily due to higher net operating loss in 2021. 

Loss for the year for the year 2021 is higher than losses suffered in 2020 by 341.71%. This was 
primarily due to the start of its operation, thus resulting to increase in cost of sales and services, 
operating expenses and finance cost. This was partially negated by increase in other income and 
recognition of income tax benefit. 

Changes in Financial Condition 

Total assets increased from ₱1.369B to ₱1.428B. The increase was primarily due to the increase 
in trade and other receivables, subscription receivable, inventories, prepayments and other current 
assets, property and equipment and deferred tax assets. This was negated by the decrease in cash 
and intangible assets. 

Cash decreased by ₱52.9M primarily due higher disbursements as compared with the collection 
for the period. Cost of sales and services and operating expenses are higher than revenue which 
resulted to loss for the period of ₱126M, the company purchased inventories with ending balance 
of ₱17M. The company acquired property and equipment amounting to ₱78M, made partial 
payment on loans payables and interest amounting to ₱81.8.  These disbursements were partly 
funded by collection of subscription and additional loans and advances from shareholders. 

Trade and other receivables increased by ₱15.2M primarily due to increase in trade receivables 
from PhilHealth and patients since the Company commenced operation in the reporting period, this 
was negated by the collection of advances to doctors and employees. 

Subscription receivable increased by ₱15.5M due to the additional subscriptions for the period 
which was negated by the collection for the period. 

The increase in inventories by ₱12.9M pertains mainly to purchases of hospital, laboratory and 
dietary supplies for the hospital operation. 

Prepayments and other current assets increased by ₱8.7M. This is primarily due to the increased 
in advanced payment made to suppliers for hospital equipment and supplies and increased in 
related VAT Input on purchases of goods and services in 2021. 

Property and equipment increased by ₱37.9M This was primarily due additional acquisition 
amounting to ₱78.5M which was negated by the increase in depreciation amounting to ₱40M. 

The decrease in Intangible asset pertains mainly to the amortization of the information system for 
the year. 

Deferred tax asset increased by ₱22M was due to the DTA recognizes for losses incurred in 2021. 
This was partly negated by the adjustments of taxes from prior period due to CREATE Act 
amounting to ₱4.1M. 

Total liabilities increased by ₱97.7M. The increase was primarily due to increase trade and other 
payables, loans and advances from shareholders which was negated by payment of loans.  

Trade and other payables increased by ₱50.5M mainly due to the increased in unpaid purchases 
to suppliers of goods and services, accrued expenses, payable to government and other payables 
for the year.  
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The decreased in retention and professional fees payables amounting to ₱6.5M pertains mainly to 
the payment of professional fee on the architectural design of the Company. 

Loans payable represents interest-bearing loan from Banks in support of the construction of the 
Company’s hospital building, acquisition of hospital and medical equipment, transportation 
equipment and furniture and fixtures and permanent working capital requirement of the hospital 
operation. The net increase of ₱27.2M was due to the additional loan release of ₱60,000,000 in 
2021 net of the partial payment made of ₱32.7M on the principal. 

The increase of ₱26.5M in advances from shareholders was due to additional advances in 2021. 

The ₱38.41M decrease in the total equity is primarily due to the net loss incurred by the Company 
on its first year of operations and return of 50 common shares which was negated by additional 
subscriptions from investors. 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 2019 

Changes in Operating Results 

     Expenses 

Expenses in 2020 are higher compared to 2019 by 33.4%. This was primarily due to significant 
increase in salaries and wages and benefits as the Company started hiring nurses and frontliners, 
security services, depreciation, utilities, repairs and maintenance, professional fee, insurance, bank 
service charge, and miscellaneous expense which was partly negated by the decrease in director’s 
allowance, meetings and conferences, transportation and travel, office supplies, taxes and licenses 
and advertising expense. 

Other Income 

Other income for the year 2020 increased by 138.63% as compared with the year 2019. This is due 
to increase in miscellaneous income which pertains to donated pharmaceutical medicines and sales 
of metal scrap. This was negated by decrease in interest income. 

     Finance Costs 

Finance cost decreased by 60.47%. This was mainly due to payment of loans. 

Income tax benefit 

Income tax benefit is lower by 5.61% due to lower net operating incurred in 2020 compared to 2019. 

Loss for the year 

Loss for the year for the year 2020 is lower than losses suffered in 2019 by 3.57%. This was due 
to the impact of the restrictions in movements due to Covid 19. 

Changes in Financial Condition 

Total assets increased from ₱1.2B to ₱1.3M. The increase was primarily due to the increase in 
trade and other receivables, subscription receivable, inventories, property and equipment, 
intangible assets and deferred tax asset which was negated by the decrease in cash and 
prepayments and other current assets. 

Cash decreased by ₱30.9M primarily due to payment of trade and other payables, acquisition of 
property and equipment, intangible assets and payment of retention and professional fees payable 
and loans payable. These were funded by the additional loans and proceeds from issuance of 
shares. 
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Trade and other receivables increased by ₱1.3M primarily due to the increase in advances to 
employees. 

Subscription receivable increased by ₱21.8M due to the subsequent collection which was negated 
by additional subscriptions for the period. 

Inventories increased by ₱4.9M which consists of hospital, laboratory, and dietary supplies for the 
upcoming opening of the hospital. 

Prepayments and other current assets decreased by ₱23.1M. This is primarily due to significant 
decrease in advances to contractors which were reclassified to proper account negated by the 
increase in VAT input and deposit to suppliers for hospital equipment and supplies. 

Property and equipment increased by ₱111.9M primarily due to the recognition of building, 
construction in progress and additional medical equipment, transportation equipment, and office 
furniture and fixtures negated by significant increase in depreciation. 

The increase in intangible asset was mainly due to acquisition of hospital information system at the 
end of the year. 

Deferred tax asset increased by ₱6.7M was due to the recognition of DTA on losses incurred in 

2020. 

Total liabilities increased by ₱73.3M. The increase was primarily due to the additional loan availed 
by the company during the year and negated by payments of trade and other payables and retention 
and professional fees payable. 

Trade payable and other liabilities decreased by ₱24.8M. This decrease was mainly due to payment 
of purchases of goods and services which was negated by increase of accrued expense and 
government payables. 

The decrease in Retention and professional fees payable was mainly due to settlement of liabilities 

to the contractor. 

Loans payable represents interest-bearing loan from Banks in support of the construction of the 
Company’s hospital building, acquisition of hospital and medical equipment, transportation 
equipment and furniture and fixtures and permanent working capital requirement of the hospital 
operation. The net increase of ₱121M due to the additional loan release of ₱140,000,000 in 2020 
net of the partial payment made of ₱58.3M on the principal. 

The ₱20.8M increase in the total equity is primarily due to issuance of shares which was partly 
negated by the negative result of operation for the year.  

During the year, the registrant earned other income as shown below

PARTICULARS 2020 2019 2018

Donated pharmaceutical medicines 1,716,292.00 1,027,196.00  1,202,355.00  

Interest income 881,196.00 - - 

Pharmacy sale 55,090.00 - - 

Sale of metal scrap  - 85,000.00        - 

Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) (31,261.00) (13,706.00)      18,666.00       

TOTAL 2,621,317.00     1,098,490.00  1,221,021.00  
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Material Changes in Financial Condition 

From January 1, 2022 to From January 1, 2021 to From January 1, 2020 to 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 

a. Cash decreased by ₱14.9M a. Cash decreased by ₱52.9M
a. Cash decreased by
₱30.9M

primarily due higher
disbursements as compared with
the collection for the period. Cost
of sales and services and
operating expenses are higher
than revenue which resulted to
loss for the period of ₱109M. The
company acquired property and
equipment and intangible asset
amounting to ₱9.2M, made partial
payment on loans payables and
interest amounting to ₱54.4M.
These disbursements were partly
funded by collection of
subscription and additional loans
and advances from shareholders.

primarily due higher
disbursements as compared
with the collection for the period.
Cost of sales and services and
operating expenses are higher
than revenue which resulted to
loss for the period of ₱126M, the
company purchased inventories
with ending balance of ₱17M.
The company acquired property
and equipment amounting to
₱78M, made partial payment on
loans payables and interest
amounting to ₱81.8. These 
disbursements were partly 
funded by collection of 
subscription and additional 
loans and advances from 
shareholders. 

primarily due to payment of
trade and other payables,
acquisition of property and
equipment, intangible
assets and payment of
retention and professional
fees payable and loans
payable. These were funded
by the additional loans and
proceeds from issuance of
shares.

b. Trade and other receivables

increased by ₱3.5M

Gross trade and other receivables 

increased by ₱18.5M primarily 

due to increase in trade 

receivables from PhilHealth, HMO 

and patients. The increase in 

gross receivables were reduced 

by the increase in allowance for 

credit losses resulting to a net 

increase in trade and other 

receivables – net by ₱3.5M. 

b. Trade and other receivables

increased by ₱15.2M

primarily due to increase in trade 

receivables from PhilHealth and 

patients since the Company 

commenced operation in the 

reporting period, this was 

negated by the collection of 

advances to doctors and 

employees. 

b. Trade and other

receivables increased by

₱1.3M

primarily due to the increase 

in advances to employees. 

c. Subscription receivable
decreased by ₱18.6M

c. Subscription receivable
increased by ₱15.5M

c. Subscription
receivable increased by
₱21.8M

Collection for the period is higher 
than the additional partially paid 
subscriptions. 

due to the additional 
subscriptions for the period 
which was negated by the 
collection for the period. 

due to the subsequent
collection which was 
negated by additional 
subscriptions for the period. 

d. Inventories decreased by
₱6.6M

d. Inventories increased by
₱12.9M

d. Inventories increased
by ₱4.9M

increase in consumption of
hospital and laboratory supplies
for the hospital operation is higher
than the purchases made during
the year.

due to purchases of hospital,
laboratory and dietary supplies
for the hospital operation.

due to the purchases of
hospital, laboratory and
dietary supplies for the
upcoming opening of the
hospital.
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e. Prepayments and other
current assets increased by
₱19.1M

e. Prepayments and other
current assets increased by
₱8.7M

e. Prepayments and other
current assets decreased
by ₱23.1M

primarily due to the increased in
advanced payment made to
suppliers for hospital equipment
and supplies and increased in
related VAT Input on purchases of
goods and services.

primarily due to the increased in
advanced payment made to
suppliers for hospital equipment
and supplies and increased in
related VAT Input on purchases
of goods and services in 2021.

primarily due to significant
decrease in advances to
contractors which were 
reclassified to proper 
account negated by the 
increase in VAT input and 
deposit to suppliers for 
hospital equipment and 
supplies. 

f. Property and equipment
increased by ₱2.62M

f. Property and equipment
increased by ₱37.9M

f. Property and equipment
increased by ₱111.9M

primarily due depreciation
amounting to ₱40M negated by
the acquisition for the year
amounting to ₱8.7M

primarily due additional
acquisition amounting to
₱78.5M which was negated by
the increase in depreciation
amounting to ₱40M.

primarily due to the
recognition of building,
construction in progress
and additional medical
equipment, transportation
equipment, and office
furniture and fixtures
negated by significant
increase in depreciation.

g. Intangible asset increased
by ₱265K

g. Intangible asset decreased
by ₱156K

g. Intangible asset
increased by ₱1.5M

due to the  additions for the year
negated by the amortization.

due to the amortization of the
information system for the year.

acquisition of hospital
information system at the
end of the year.

h. Deferred tax asset increased
by ₱20.4M

h. Deferred tax asset
increased by ₱15.7M

h. Deferred tax asset
increased by ₱6.7M

due to  the DTA recognizes for
losses incurred in 2022, DTA on
additional credit losses for the
year negated by the expiration of
unapplied MCIT and NOLCO for
the year 2019.

due to the DTA recognizes for
losses incurred in 2021. This
was partly negated by the
adjustments of taxes from prior
period due to CREATE Act
amounting to ₱4.1M.

due to the recognition of
DTA on losses incurred in
2020.

i. Trade and other payables
increased by ₱19.4M

i. Trade and other payables
increased by ₱50.5M

i. Trade and other
payables decreased by
₱24.8M

due to the increased in unpaid
purchases to suppliers of goods
and services and payable to
government negated by the
decrease in accrued expenses.

due to the increased in unpaid
purchases to suppliers of goods
and services, accrued
expenses, payable to
government and other payables
for the year.

mainly due to payment of
purchases of goods and
services which was negated
by increase of accrued
expense and government
payables.

j. Retention and professional
fees decreased by ₱13.2M

j. Retention and professional
fees decreased by ₱6.5M

j. Retention and 
professional fees 
decreased by ₱23.5M

due to the payment of retention 
payable 

due to the payment of 
professional fee on the 
architectural design of the 
Company. 

due to settlement of 
liabilities to the contractor. 

k. Loans payable increased by
₱15.1M

k. Loans payable increased
by ₱27.2M

k. Loans payable
increased by ₱121M
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Material Changes in Operations 

2022 vs.  2021 2021 vs.  2020 2020 vs.  2019 

a. Revenue increased by 55% a. Revenue increased by 100%

The Company is in its second
year of operation, revenues are
expected to be higher compared
to its first year of operation in
2021

due to full commercial operations
of its hospital building and
facilities. Revenue generated for
the year amounts ₱105.7M. This
was from Hospital fees and sales
of medicines.

b. Cost of sales and services
increased by 38%

b. Cost of sales and services
increased by 100%

directly associated with the 
company’s operation. The major 
component of the cost of sales 
and services are medicines and 
supplies, depreciation, salaries 
and wages, utilities, professional 
fees and housekeeping. 

directly associated with the 
company’s operation. The major 
component of the cost of sales 
and services are medicines and 
supplies, depreciation, salaries 
and wages, utilities, professional 
fees and housekeeping. 

c. Operating Expenses
increased by 23%

c. Operating Expenses
increased by 47.05%

a. Operating Expenses
increased by 33.4%

the increase was attributable to
the increase in credit losses,
utilities, taxes and licenses,
repairs and maintenance, training
and development, professional
fee, amortization and office
supplies. This is negated by
decrease in directors’ allowances
and officers’ compensation,
transportation and travel,
insurance, depreciation, meetings

the increase was attributable
directly to the company’s
operation which commence in
2021. This was primarily due to
the increased in salaries and
wages and benefits, security
services, depreciation,
recognition of credit losses,
utilities, repairs and maintenance,
meeting and conferences,
transportation and travel, office
supplies, insurance, bank service

primarily due to significant
increase in salaries and
wages and benefits as the
Company started hiring
nurses and frontliners, 
security services, 
depreciation, utilities, 
repairs and maintenance, 
professional fee, 
insurance, bank service 
charge, and miscellaneous 
expense which was partly 

The net increase of ₱15.1M was 
due to the additional loan release 
of ₱27,500,000 in 2022 net of the 
partial payment made on the 
principal. 

The net increase of ₱27.2M was 
due to the additional loan 
release of ₱60,000,000 in 2021 
net of the partial payment made 
of ₱32.7M on the principal. 

The net increase of ₱121M 
due to the additional loan 
release of ₱140,000,000 in 
2020 net of the partial 
payment made of ₱58.3M 
on the principal. 

l. Advances from shareholders
increased by ₱16.3M

l. Advances from
shareholders increased by
₱26.5M

due to additional advances in 
2022. 

due to additional advances in 
2021. 

m. Equity decreased by
₱65.84M

m. Equity decreased by
₱26.5M

l. Equity increased by
₱20.8M

primarily due to the net loss
incurred by the Company on its
second year of operations and
return of 23 common shares which
was negated by additional
subscriptions for the year..

primarily due to the net loss
incurred by the Company on its
first year of operations and
return of 50 common shares
which was negated by additional
subscriptions from investors.

due to issuance of shares
which was partly negated by
the negative result of
operation for the year.
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and conferences, bank service 
charges and miscellaneous. 

charge, amortization, training and 
development and miscellaneous 
expenses. 

negated by the decrease in 
director’s allowance, 
meetings and conferences, 
transportation and travel, 
office supplies, taxes and 
licenses and advertising 
expense. 

d. Other income increased by
49.34%

d. Other income increased by
71.47%

b. Other income
increased by 138.63%

due significant increase in income
from cafeteria which is directly
related with the Company’s
operation. This was negated by
the decrease in interest income
and miscellaneous income

the increase was due to income
from cafeteria which is directly
related with the Company’s start
of operation. This was negated by
the decrease in interest income
and miscellaneous income.

due to increase in
miscellaneous income
which pertains to donated
pharmaceutical medicines
and sales of metal scrap.
This was negated by
decrease in interest
income.

e. Finance cost decreased by
14.27%

e. Finance cost increased by
986.04%

c. Finance cost
decreased by 60.47%

due to partial settlement of loans
and restructuring of loan balance
due to request for deferment of
loan payments in 2022.

finance cost in 2021 were
charged directly to operation.
While in previous period these
were capitalized to property and
equipment, since these loans
were used to finance the
construction of Hospital building
and equipment.

This mainly due to
payment of loans.

f. Income tax benefit increased
by 6.23%

f. Income tax benefit increased
by 225.36%

d. Income tax benefit
decreased by 5.61%

though the loss in 2022 is lower 
than in 2021, the tax benefit in 
2022 is higher due to the effect of 
CREATE Act in 2021 income tax. 

primarily due to higher net 
operating loss in 2021 

due to lower net operating 
incurred in 2020 compared 
to 2019. 

g. Loss for the year decreased
by 8.42%

g. Loss for the year increased
by 315.96%

e. Loss for the year
decreased by 4.03%

mainly due to the higher revenue 
and other income earned for the 
year coupled with decrease in 
finance cost. The Company is in 
its second year of operation, 
results of operation are expected 
to be more favorable compared to 
its first year of operation in 2021. 

primarily due to the start of its 
operation, thus resulting to 
increase in cost of sales and 
services, operating expenses and 
finance cost. This was partially 
negated by increase in other 
income and recognition of income 
tax benefit. 

due to the impact of the 
restrictions in movements 
due to Covid 19. 

There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have material impact on liquidity.  
Nevertheless, Management still continues to pursue intensive collection efforts to reduce accounts 
receivables and improve cash management. 

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations and other 
relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the 
reporting period.  

There were no material events that would trigger direct or indirect contingent financial obligation 

that would materially affect the company’s operation, including any default or acceleration of 

obligation.  
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The Company continues to spend for capital expenditures in relation to the hospital operation. 

There were no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s 
continuing operations. 

The financial condition or results of operations of the Company are not affected by any seasonal 
change. 

The Company is involved in certain legal proceedings as enumerated and discussed in Item 3. 
Legal Proceedings, pages 7 - 8 of this report.  

Financial Risks 

a. Interest Rate Risk – The Company’s interest rate risk is limited to its cash in banks and loans
payable.

b. Credit Risk – The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its cash and receivables. The
Company has adopted stringent procedure in extending credit terms and in monitoring its credit
risk. The Company limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with financial
institutions duly evaluated and approved by the BOD.

c. Liquidity Risk – As part of the Company’s overall liquidity management, the Company maintains
a level of cash deemed sufficient to finance operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuation
in cash flows and a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans and advances from related parties, if there’s any.

The Company has no investments in foreign securities. 

B. Information on Independent Accountant

The Company’s external auditor for Y2022 is the auditing firm of PEREZ, SESE, VILLA and 
Company, CPAs. The Board will appoint the Company’s external auditor for Y2023 based on the 
recommendation of the audit committee composed of Dr. Ronald L. Ramiro (Chairman/Independent 
Director), Dr. Florentina U. Ty (Independent Director) and Ms. Joy C. Luna subject to stockholders’ 
approval.  

a. The Audit committee evaluates proposals based on the quality of service, commitment for
deadline and fees. The committee may require a presentation from each proponent to clarify
some issues.

b. PEREZ, SESE, VILLA and Company, CPAs, represented by its engagement partner, Ms. Alma
Sese, is the external auditor of the Company for the most recently completed year 2022.
Pursuant to SRC Rule 68 (3) (b) (iv) of the Amended Implementing Rules and Regulations of
the Securities Regulation Code (SRC) (re: rotation of external auditors), the Company has not
engaged Ms. Alma Sese for more than five years.

c. Representatives of PEREZ, SESE, VILLA and Company, CPAs are expected to be present
during the stockholders’ meeting. The representatives will have the opportunity to make
statements if they desire to do so and will be available to respond to appropriate questions
from the security holders.

d. During the two (2) most recent fiscal years or any subsequent interim period, the independent
auditor has not resigned nor was dismissed or has declined to stand for reappointment after
the completion of the current audit.

e. The aggregate annual external audit fees billed for each of the last two (2) fiscal years for the
audit of the registrant’s annual financial statements or services that are normally provided by
the external auditor are as follows:

For the year 2022 -   PHP 240,000.00 [billed and paid in 2022 (partial) and 2023 (full
payment)]
For the year 2021 -   PHP 240,000.00 [billed and paid in 2021 (partial) and 2022 (full
payment)]
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f. The above audit fees are inclusive of the following: (a) audit, other assurance and related
services by the External Auditor that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or
review of the Company’s financial statements (PHP); and

g. Prior to the commencement of the audit, the Audit Committee shall discuss, review and
recommend with the external auditors the nature, scope and fees of the audit.

PART IV – MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS 

(A) Directors, Executive Officers

(1) Directors

There are fifteen (15) members of the Board, three (3) of whom are independent directors. The 
term of office of each member is one (1) year, to hold office until the next succeeding annual 
stockholders’ meeting and until his/her successor is elected and qualified. 

The following are the current members of the Board of Directors: 

1. Enriquez, Amado Manuel Jr. C.

2. Molon, Nicolas S.

3. Salonga, McArthur Conrado Jr. A.

4. Nolasco, Felix P.

5. Zozobrado, Evangeline Y.

6. Gabriel, Enjel A.

7. Libre, Ma. Asuncio Hipolita B.

8. Samoy, Marietta T.

9. Antigua, Neonita C.

10. Chan, Velma T.

11. Chua, Edward A.

12. De Leon, Roberto M.

13. Gonzalez, Julio L.

14. Luna, Joy C.

15. Orillaza, Marissa A.

16. Tan, Ma. Luisa S.

Name Business and Professional Work Experience 

Enriquez, Amado Manuel Jr. C., 
69 years old, Filipino 

Chairman of the Board – ACE Medical Center – Cebu (2015-
present); Manila East Medical Center (2007-2008, 2017); 
Paranaque Doctors Hospital (2012-2017); ACE Medical Center 
Baypointe, Subic (2007-2011); Unihealth Paranaque Hospital 
(2014- 2017); Alaminos Medical Center Foundation (2001- 
present).  
Founding Chairman – ACE Medical Center Valenzuela, ACE 
Medical Center Baliwag, ACE Medical Center Pateros, ACE 
Medical Center Malolos, ACE Medical Center Mandaluyong, ACE 
Medical Center Palawan, ACE Medical Center Iloilo, ACE Medical 
Center Tacloban, ACE Medical Center Bohol, ACE Medical 
Center Dumaguete, ACE Medical Center Bacolod, ACE Medical 
Center General Santos, ACE Medical Center CDO, ACE Medical 
Center Dipolog, ACE Medical Center Zamboanga, ACE Medical 
Center Butuan 
Active consultant in Cardiovascular-Thoracic Surgery – St. Luke’s 
Medical Center, Manila East Medical Center, ACE Medical Center 
Hospitals. 

Molon, Nicolas S., 77 years old, 
Filipino 

Present Positions: Chairman of the Board Of Directors: 
Advanced Medical Systems, Inc.- Calamba Doctors' Hospital; 
Calamba Doctors' Med., Educational And Science Foundation, 
Inc.; Pudci-Shakey's Inc . 
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Member Of The Board Of Directors: Allied Care Experts (ACE) 
Medical Center-Cebu, Inc; Laguna MRI Paseo Uno De Calamba 
Inc.; Nineveh Learning Center, Inc.  

Past Positions: Chairman Of The Board Of Directors: Allied Care 
Experts(ACE) Medical Center-Cebu, Inc.; Imus, Inc (Medical 
Center Imus); Manila East Medical Center Inc; Medical Center 
Muntinlupa, Inc; Diliman Doctors' Hospital; Marikina Valley 
Medical Center, Inc.; Bacoor Doctors' Medical Center, Inc. 

Salonga, McArthur Conrado, Jr. 
A., 53 years old, Filipino 

President – ACE Medical Center (2020 to Present); Vice President 
(2020): Philippine College of Surgeons – CEVC; President (2010): 
Cebu Doctors’ University Alumnae Association; President (2012) 
: Philippine Society of General Surgeons – CEVC; Board of 
Director (2003-2013): Philippine College of Surgeons – CEVC; 
Board of Director (2014) : Philippine Association of Laparoscopic 
and Endoscopic Surgeons – CEVC; National Board of Director 
(2014) : Philippine Society of General Surgeons; Tumor Board Co-
Chairman (2008 – present): Cebu Doctors’ University Hospital; 
Tumor Board Chairman (2010 - present): South General Hospital; 
Chairman, Department of Surgery (2012 - 2018): South General 
Hospital; Training Officer, Department of Surgery (2016 – 
present): Cebu Doctors’ University Hospital; Member, National 
Accreditation Committee, Philippine Society of General Surgeons 
– (2018 – present)

Practicing General Surgeon at: Cebu Doctors Group of Hospitals 
(Cebu Doctors University Hospital, South General Hospital, 
North General Hospital and Mactan Doctors); Perpetual Succour 
Hospital; St. Vincent General Hospital; Cebu Velez General 
Hospital; Mendero General Hospital; Mandaue District Hospital; 
Ormoc Sugar Planters Association Hospital 

Nolasco, Felix N., 65 years old, 
Filipino 

Doctor of Medicine. 
Specialty – ENT-Head and neck Surgery, Maxillofacial Trauma 
Surgery. 
Consultant – Asian Hospital and Medical Center, Manila Doctors 
Hospital. 
President, Baypoint Hospital and Medical Center, SBMA, 2013 to 
2016. 
Medical Director, Unihealth Paranaque Hospital and Medical 
Center, 2014 to 2016. 
Administrator, Unihealth Paranaque Hospital and Medical Center, 
2017 to present. 
Vice-Chairman, ACE Valenzuela, 2015; ACE Baliwag, 2015. 
Vice-President, ACE Medical Center – Bohol, 2016 – present. 

Zozobrado, Evangeline Y., 67 
years old, Filipino 

Director – ACE Medical Center-Cebu (2015 to Present); Pediatric 
Consultant - Asian Hospital and Medical Center (2002-present) 
Corp. Secretary - Medical Center Muntinlupa (2016- 2017), ACE 
Baliwag (2012-present) Medical Director - Las Pinas City Medical 
Center (2014-2016) Hospital Administrator – Diliman Doctors 
Hospital (2017) Pediatric Consultant - Paranaque Doctors 
Hospital, University of Perpetual Help System Dalta Hospital and 
Medical Center 

Gabriel, Enjel A., 57 years old, 
Filipino 

Director – ACEMC Cebu (2020-Present) 
Assistant Training Officer, 2002-2005 Gastroenterology 
Fellowship Program, Cebu Doctor’s University Hospital; Research 
Coordinator, 2006 – present Gastroenterology Fellowship 
Program, Cebu Doctor’s University Hospital; Secretary, 
Department of Internal Medicine, 2001- present UV-Gullas 
College of Medicine; Training Officer, Gastroenterology 
Fellowship Program Vicente Sotto Memorial Medical Center; 
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Chairman, Department of Internal Medicine ACE Medical Center 
Cebu 

Libre, Ma. Asuncion Hipolita B., 
69 years old, Filipino,  

ACE Medical Center Cebu - Asst. Corporate Secretary (2020 – 
2021), Corporate Secretary (2021 – present); Cebu Doctors 
University Hopsital, Visayas Community Medical Center, Cebu 
Velez General Hospital - Former training officer, Department of 
Obstetrics and Gynecology; Visayas Community Medical Center 
– Former Chair, Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology; Cebu
Institute of Medicine and Cebu Doctor’s University Hospital –
Associate Professor, Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology;
Visayas Community Medical Center, Cebu Doctor’s University
Hospital, Chong Hua Hospital, Cebu Velez General Hospital,
Perpetual Soccour Hospital – Active Staff, Department of
Obstetrics and Gynecology; Vicente Sotto Memorial Medical
Center, Gov. Celestino Gallares Memorial Hospital Bohol –
Visiting Consultant; Visayas Community Medical Center – Head,
Section of Gynecologic Endoscopy; Cebu Velez General Hospital
– Head, Section of Gynecologic Endoscopy

Samoy, Marietta T., 64 years 
old, Filipino 

Board Member of The FF. Hospitals: 
ACEMC Cebu – 2020; MCM Muntinlupa Medical Center -
Administrator. 2020-2021; Paranaque Doctors Hospital: Head, 
OB- GYN, Head: Business Office 2019; Las Pinas City Medical 
Center: Head, Pharmacy- 2019; Diliman Doctors Hospital Board 
Member 2018-2019 

Antigua, Neonita C., 63 years 
old, Filipino 

Present: 
President - MSR Real Estate Development Corporation Inc. 
Business Office Head – ACE Medical Center-Cebu 2016-Present 
Independent Director – ACE Medical Center-Cebu 2019-2020 
Previous: 
Security Bank – Teller 
Mactan Airbase Accounting Office – Bookkeeper 
New York Life International Insurance Corporation – Manager 

Chan, Velma T., 55 years old, 
Filipino 

Director – ACE Medical Center-Cebu (2015 to Present) 
Practicing Pediatrician at: Chong Hua Hospital; Cebu (Velez) 
General Hospital; Visayas Community Medical Center; Perpetual 
Succour Hospital; Sacred Heart Hospital; St. Vincent General 
Hospital 

Chua, Edward A., 47 years old, 
Filipino 

Private practice as pediatric pulmonologist 
= Part time faculty, Cebu Institute of Medicine (2012- 
present) 
= Part time faculty, Cebu Doctors University Hospital (2006- 
2012) 

De Leon, Roberto M., 70 years 
old, Filipino 

Director – ACE Medical Center-Cebu (2021 to present) 
Chairman of the ff Hospitals:  
Baypointe Hospital & Medical Center -Olongapo City Mindoro 
Medical Center- Calapan, Mindoro  
Luzon Alliance Med Center - Guiguinto , Bulacan  
Marquee Doctors Med Center- Angeles, Pampanga Visayas Ave. 
Med. Center- Quezon City  
Rizal Doctors Med. Center- Angono, Rizal  
Cabanatuan Medical Center- Cabantuan City  
Great Valley Med Center- Quezon City  
Holy Infant Saviour Somo$ Med Center- Mindoro  
Balanga Med Center- Balanga, Bataan  
Salt Lake Med Center- Paranaque City  
President of the ff Hosptials:  
Allied Care Experts Med Center-Valenzuela City 
Sto. Tomas Doctors Hosp & Med Center- Batangas  
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Doctors' Med Center Sta. Ana- Manila 

Gonzalez, Julio L., 71 years 
old, Filipino 

1979 to Present Private Practice as Pediatrician 
2015 to Present Hospital Administrator, ACE Medical Center-
Cebu 
2014 to 2020 Board of Director, ACE Medical Center-Cebu 
Affiliated with Rotary Club Fuente, Cebu Medical Society, 
Philippine Medical Association 

Luna, Joy C., 54 years old, 
Filipino 

E.A. NORTHAM PHARMA / S.V. MORE  - January 1989 - March 
1991 

> Medical Representative - January 1989 to January 1990
> Assistant Field Sales Supervisor - February 1990 to July

1990 
> Field Sales Supervisor - August 1990 to March 1991

SMITHKLINE BEECHAM - April 1991 to April 2001 
> Medical Representative

MANILA EAST MEDICAL CENTER - May 2001 to Present 
> Human Resource Department Director - December 2002 to

March 2006 
> Pharmacy Director - March 2003 to Present
> Head, Central Supplies Department - July 2003 to Present
> Head, Training and Development Department - 2010 to

Present 
> Member, Board of Directors - 2005 to Present

DILIMAN DOCTORS HOSPITAL - May 2015 to Present 
> Member, Board of Directors - May 2015 to Present
> Pharmacy Director - May 2015  to Present

ALLIED CARE EXPERTS MEDICAL CENTER CEBU - March 
2015 to Present 

> Member, Board of Directors - March 2015 to July 2020
> Pharmacy Director - April 2017 to Present

PRIME HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTER PASIG - December 
2017 to Present 

> Member, Board of Directors - December 2017 to Present
> Marketing Director - May 2019 to Present

Orillaza, Marissa, years old, 
Filipino 

Anatomic and Clinical Pathologist and active Fellow of Philippine 
Society of Pathologists and currently rotates as the Head of the 
Department of Laboratory Medicine in Tagaytay Medical Center, 
Paranaque Doctors Hospital and Unihealth Sta. Rosa Hospital 
and 
Medical Center. 
Sits on the Board of Directors in rotation with some of the 
founders of ACE Group of Hospitals for she is a founding 
member 
of the said corporation e.g. currently at ACEMC-Quezon City, 
ACEMC-Valenzuela, ACEMC-Tacloban and ACEMC-Pateros. 

Tan, Ma. Luisa S., 48 years old, 
Filipino 

Active consultant - Perpetual Succour Hospital, March 2006 
to present 
CT Section head - Vicente sotto 
CT section head - Velez hospital 
Active consultant - Cortes General Hospital 
Visiting consultant - Hi precision diagnostics 

(2) Executive Officers

The Company’s key executive officers as of 31 December 2022, are as follows: 

Dr. McArthur Conrado A. Salonga, Jr. - President
Dr. Felix P. Nolasco - Vice President
Dr. Evangeline Y. Zozobrado - Treasurer
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Dr. Enjel A. Gabriel - Assistant Treasurer
Dr. Ma. Asuncion Hipolita B. Libre - Corporate Secretary
Dr. Marietta T. Samoy  - Assistant Corporate Secretary

The Officers (per the Company’s By-Laws) are elected/appointed annually by the Board of 
Directors during its organizational meeting, each to hold office for one (1) year until the next 
organizational meeting of the Board in the following year or until a successor shall have been 
elected/appointed and shall have qualified. 

INCUMBENT OFFICERS 

1. AMADO MANUEL ENRIQUEZ, JR.  – Chairman, see foregoing Director’s Profile
2. NICOLAS S. MOLON – Vice-Chairman, see foregoing Director’s Profile
3. MCARTHUR CONRADO A. SALONGA, JR. – President, see foregoing Director’s Profile
4. FELIX P. NOLASCO – Vice President, see foregoing Director’s Profile
5. EVANGELINE Y. ZOZOBRADO – Treasurer, see foregoing Director’s Profile
6. ENJEL A. GABRIEL – Assistant Treasurer, see foregoing Director’s Profile
7. MA. ASUNCION HIPOLITA B. LIBRE – Corporate Secretary, see foregoing Director’s Profile
8. MARIETTA T. SAMOY – Assistant Corporate Secretary, see foregoing Director’s Profile

(3) Significant Employees

The Company relies significantly on the continued collective efforts of its senior executive 
officers and expects each employee to do his share in achieving the Company’s goals.  

(4) Family Relationships

Except for the following: 

Drs. Amado Manuel C. Enriquez, Jr., Marilyn R. Enriquez and Miguel Antonio R. Enriquez and 
Michael Edward R. Enriquez, who are parents and children, respectively; Drs. Geanie Cerna-
Lopez and Mark Joseph Lopez, who are parent and child; Dr. Nicolas Molon, Mrs. Edna Molon, 
Dr. Jan Noel Molon, Ms. Myla Molon and Ms. Flordelisa Nasol, who are parents, children, and 
sibling, respectively; Dr. Evangeline Y. Zozobrado, Mr. Agustin Zozobrado and Dr. Kaye 
Zozobrado, who are parents and child, respectively; Spouses Drs. Roberto and Rhodora de 
Leon; Spouses Drs. John Jerlyn and Maita Cruz; Spouses Dr. Ronald and Jane Ramiro; 
Spouses Drs. Felix and Eulenia Nolasco; Spouses Dr. Rodolfo and Ms. Joy Luna, and Ms. 
Floram Limotlimot, who are in-laws and siblings, respectively; there are no other family 
relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity among directors, 
executive officers, persons nominated or chosen by the Company to become directors, or 
executive officers, any security holder of certain record, beneficial owner, or management. 

(5) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Related party relationships exist when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly 
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the 
other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between 
and/or among entities which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or 
between and/or among   the   reporting   enterprises   and their key   management personnel, 
directors   or   its stockholders. Outstanding balances are settled through cash. 
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A summary of the transactions and account balances with related parties follows: 

December 31, 2022 

Nature of 
Relationship 

Nature of 
Transaction 

Amount 
(current 

transaction) 
Outstanding 

balance Terms Conditions 

Major 
Shareholders 

Advances ₱16,300,000 ₱42,800,000 

Interest bearing; 
payable in cash; 

no scheduled 
repayment terms 

Unsecured 

(6) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

1. Civil Case No. R-CEB-18-01248-CV, Branch XI, Cebu City (Complaint for Declaration of Sale
in Installment as Subscription Contract, Declaration of Rights or Pre-Emption, and for
Attorney’s Fees) - Dax Matthew M. Quijano, Rosemarie P. Quijano, Eric Y. Cheung, Girlie
Cheung, Candice Joy A. Sia vs. ACE Medical Center-Cebu, Inc., Geanie Cerna-Lopez, Velma
T. Chan, Luisito R. Co, Maita Cruz, Roberto M. De Leon, Amado Manuel C. Enriquez Jr.,
Floram C. Limotlimot, Roland Mark M. Gigataras, Joy C. Luna, Nicolas S. Molon, Felix P.
Nolasco, Generoso M. Orillaza, Ronald L. Ramiro, Marietta T. Samoy and Evangeline Y.
Zozobrado

On March 7, 2018, complainants Dax Matthew M. Quijano, Rosemarie P. Quijano, Eric Y. 
Cheung, Girlie Cheung, Candice Joy A. Sia, through counsel filed a civil complaint against the 
Hospital and its Directors (as stated above) praying the Court to direct the defendants ACE 
Medical Center Cebu and its President and Corporate Secretary to issue the plaintiff’s 
Certificate of Stock and declare the sale in installment as subscription contract, to allow him to 
exercise pre-emptive rights to the increase in capital approved by the Board on November 12, 
2016.  

The Defendants have already filed their Answer to the Complaint. 

We filed a Motion to Dismiss the Complaint for lack of interest of the plaintiffs to prosecute the 
case last August 5, 2020. A Judicial Dispute Resolution was scheduled but failed. Case is up 
for pre-trial conference. 

The judicial dispute resolution (JDR) failed. The case is up for pre-trial conference on April 13, 
2023 

2. Civil Case No. R-CEB-18-00601-CV, Branch XI, Cebu City (Complaint for Issuance of

Certificate of Stock, Declaration of Sale in Installment as Subscription Contract, Declaration of

Rights or Pre-Emption, and for Attorney’s Fees ) – Ferdinand P. Kionisala vs. Allied Care

Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Cebu, Inc., Geanie Cerna-Lopez, Velma T. Chan, Luisito R.

Co, Maita Cruz, Roberto M. De Leon, Amado Manuel C. Enriquez, Jr., Floram C. Limotlimot,

Roland Mark M. Gigataras, Joy C. Luna, Nicolas S. Molon, Felix P. Nolasco, Generoso M.

Orillaza, Ronald S. Ramiro, Marietta T. Samoy, and Evangeline Y. Zozobrado

On February 5, 2018, complainant Ferdinand P. Kionisala filed a civil complaint against the
Hospital and its Directors (as stated above) praying the Court to direct the defendants ACE
Medical Center Cebu and its President and Corporate Secretary to issue the plaintiff’s
Certificate of Stock and declare the sale in installment as subscription contract, to allow him to
exercise pre-emptive rights to the increase in capital approved by the Board on November 12,
2016.
The Defendants (based in Cebu) have already filed their Answer to the Complaint and Dr.
Kionisala has filed a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, but the same was opposed by the
defendants on May 15, 2018. The Court has not yet ruled on the plaintiff’s Motion for Partial
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Summary Judgment of May 2, 2018. Unless the Court resolves the Motion for Summary 
Judgment by the plaintiff, the case will not move on.  

The Defendants filed a Motion to Dismiss the case for failure of the plaintiff to prosecute for lack 
of interest. The case was scheduled for Pre-Trial on April 30, 2021. Pre-trial was terminated. 
Case is set for presentation of plaintiff’s evidence. 

The Court rendered on August 9, 2022 a partial summary judgement on plaintiff’s prayer for 
issuance of certificate of stock leaving the other issues sought for trial on the merits. However, 
instead of presenting his evidence plaintiff filed a motion to submit the case for decision based 
on legal issues through the filing of memorandum which is still pending for resolution.  

3. Special Civil Action Case No. R-CEB-18-08795-SC, Branch XI, Cebu City (For Mandamus to

Issue 100% Pre-Emptive Rights, Damages and for Attorney’s Fees)  - Leo T. Sumatra, Sps.

Stephen Paul M. Bergado and Conchita B. Bergado, Marie Davielene Beatriz Ong-Dy and

Leonard Matthew Dy, et. Al vs. Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Cebu, Inc.,

GeanieCerna-Lopez and Velma T. Chan

The Petitioners have filed a Special Civil Action case for Mandamus, to compel the
Respondents to immediately issue their 100% pre-emptive rights. The Petitioners claim they
are entitled to 10 shares based on their computation of 0.000083333 ownership multiplied by
120,000 (increase in Capital).

Respondents received the Court Order on 11 December 2018. On November 25, 2020 at 
8:30AM, a Judicial Dispute Resolution was conducted by RTC Branch 12, Cebu City via video 
conference hearing. Both parties did not come into an agreement. The Petitioners demanded 
PHP 600,000.00 from the Respondents. The case was scheduled for Pre-Trial on June 11, 
2021. Pre-trial was terminated. Case is set for presentation of petitioners’ evidence. 

Presentation of petitioners’ evidence. Petitioners had so far presented two (2) witnesses. 

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the board of directors since the date of 
the last annual meeting of security holders due to disagreement with the registrant on any matter 
relating to the registrant’s operations, policies, and practices. 

(B) Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 

Name & Principal 
Position 

Year Salary Bonus 
Other 

Compensatio
n 

. 
Chairman 

 2022 - - - 

President / CEO 
 2022 - - - 

Vice-President 
2022 - - - 

Treasurer 
2022 - - - 

Vice-Chairman 
2022 - - - 

Corporate Secretary 2022 - - - 

Aggregate For The Above-
Named CEO & Officers 

2023-
Estim. 

- - - 

2022 - - - 

2021 - - -
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Aggregate For The Officers 
And Directors As A Group 

2023-
Estim. 

- - - 

2022 - - - 

The Board has approved the per diem (P10,000.00/board meeting) during board meetings for 
each director. Likewise, last June 12, 2021, the Board has approved the compensation package 
for the following officers:  

Position 
Monthly 

Compensation  Monthly Impact Annual Impact 

Chairman  30,000.00   30,000.00  360,000.00 

Vice Chairman  25,000.00   25,000.00  300,000.00 

President   30,000.00   30,000.00  360,000.00 

Vice President  25,000.00   25,000.00  300,000.00 

Corporate Secretary  25,000.00   25,000.00  300,000.00 

Assistant Corporate Secretary  20,000.00   20,000.00  240,000.00 

Corporate Treasurer  25,000.00   25,000.00  300,000.00 

Assistant Corporate Treasurer  20,000.00   20,000.00  240,000.00 

Medical Director  25,000.00   25,000.00  300,000.00 

Hospital Administrator  25,000.00   25,000.00  300,000.00 

Assistant Medical Director     5,000.00    5,000.00     60,000.00 

Assistant Hospital Administrator     5,000.00    5,000.00     60,000.00 

Chief of Clinics  15,000.00         15,000.00         180,000.00 

Department Heads  10,000.00      150,000.00      1,800,000.00  

Assistant Department Heads     5,000.00     115,000.00      1,380,000.00  

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has not yet paid the compensation of the officers as 
reflected above.  

The Company does not have a registered, non-contributory retirement plan.  

The Company has no existing options, warrants or rights to purchase any securities. 

(C) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

(1) The persons known to the registrant to be directly or indirectly the record or beneficial owner
of more than 5% of the registrant’s voting securities as of December 31,2022 are as follows:

Title of 
Class 

Name, Address of record 
owner and Relationship 

with Issuer 

Name of Beneficial 
Owner and 

Relationship with 
Record Owner 

Citizenship No. of Shares Held Percent 

Common 
Founder 

Marilyn R. Enriquez / West 
Ave., Quezon City / Stockholder 

Amado Manuel C. Enriquez, 
Jr., Spouse/Father 

Filipino 

Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Total – 2,500 
13.14% 

Common 
Founder 

Michael Edward R. Enriquez / 
West Ave., Quezon City / 
Stockholder 

Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Total – 2,500 

Common 
Founder 

Miguel Antonio R. Enriquez/ 
West Ave., Quezon City / 
Stockholder 

Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Total – 2,500 

Common 
Founder 

Edna R. Molon / Ramon Tirona 
St., BF Homes, Las Pinas City / 
Stockholder 

Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Total – 2,500 

7.30% 
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Common 
Founder 

Jan Noel R. Molon / Ramon 
Tirona St., BF Homes, Las 
Pinas City / Stockholder 

Nicolas S. Molon, 
Spouse/Father/Brother 

Filipino Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Total – 2,500 

Common 
Founder 

Myla Noreen R. Molon / Ramon 
Tirona St., BF Homes, Las 
Pinas City / Stockholder 

Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Total – 2,500 

Common 
Founder 

Flordelis M. Nasol / Ramon 
Tirona St., BF Homes, Las 
Pinas City / Stockholder 

Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Total – 2,500 

(2) Security Ownership of Directors and Management as of December 31, 2022:

(1) 
Title of 
Class 

(2) Name of
Beneficial Owner 

Position 

(3) Amount
and Nature of 

Beneficial 
Ownership 

(4) 
Citizenship 

(5) 
Percentage 
(%) of Class 

Board of Directors: 

Common 
Founder 

Amado Manuel C. Enriquez, 
Jr. 

Director 

Direct – 15,000 
Founder – 60 
Common – 14,940 

Indirect – 7,500 
Founder – 30 
Common – 7,470 

Filipino 13.14% 

Common 
Founder 

McArthur Conrado A. 
Salonga, Jr. Director 

Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 1.46% 

Common 
Founder 

Geanie Cerna-Lopez Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Indirect – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 2.92% 

Common 
Founder 

Nicolas S. Molon Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Indirect – 10,000 
Founder – 40 
Common – 9,960 

Filipino 7.30% 

Common 
Founder 

Ma. Asuncion Hipolita B. 
Libre 

Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 1.46% 

Common 
Founder 

John Clifford E. Aranas Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 1.46% 

Common 
Founder 

Evangeline Y. Zozobrado Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Indirect – 5,000 
Founder – 20 
Common – 4,980 

Filipino 4.38% 

Common 
Founder 

John Jerlyn Cruz Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Indirect – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 2.92% 

Common 
Founder 

Velma T. Chan Director Direct – 5,006 
Founder – 20 
Common – 4,986 

Filipino 2.92% 

Common 
Founder 

Florentina U. Ty Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 1.46% 

Common 
Founder 

Elda Grace G. Anota Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 1.46% 

Common 
Founder 

Joy C. Luna Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Indirect – 5,000 
Founder – 20 
Common – 4,980 

Filipino 4.38% 

Common 
Founder 

Roberto M. de Leon Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Indirect – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 2.92% 
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Common 
Founder 

Fay Jasmine G. de los Santos Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 1.46% 

Common 
Founder 

Ronald L. Ramiro Director Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Indirect – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 2.92% 

Total for Directors 90,006 52.56% 

Executive Officers: 
Common 
Founder McArthur Conrado A. 

Salonga, Jr. 

President Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 1.46% 

Common 
Founder 

Geanie Cerna-Lopez 

Vice President Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Indirect – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 2.92% 

Common 
Founder 

Evangeline Y. Zozobrado 

Treasurer Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Indirect – 5,000 
Founder – 20 
Common – 4,980 

Filipino 4.38% 

Common 
Founder 

Ma. Asuncion Hipolita B. 
Libre 

Corporate 
Secretary 

Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 1.46% 

Common 
Founder 

Enjel A. Gabriel Assistant 
Treasurer 

Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 1.46% 

Common 
Founder 

Marietta T. Samoy Assistant 
Corporate 
Secretary 

Direct – 2,500 
Founder – 10 
Common – 2,490 

Filipino 1.46% 

Total for Executive Officers 22,500 13.14% 

Directors and Executive Officers as a Group 95,006 55.48% 

(3) Except for Dr. Amado Manuel C. Enriquez Jr., who owns 13.14% [through direct and
indirect ownership], Dr. Nicolas S. Molon, who owns 7.30% [through direct and indirect
ownership], Dr. Evangeline Y. Zozobrado, who owns 4.38% [through direct and indirect
ownership], Dr. Geanie Cerna-Lopez, who owns 2.92% [through direct and indirect
ownership], Ms. Joy C. Luna, who owns 4.38% [through direct and indirect ownership], Dr.
Velma T. Chan, who owns 2.92% [through direct ownership], Dr. John Jerlyn Cruz, who
owns 2.93% [through direct and indirect ownership], Dr. Roberto M. de Leon, who owns
2.92% [through direct and indirect ownership],  and Dr. Ronald L. Ramiro, who owns 2.92%
[through direct and indirect ownership] none of the other Company’s directors and
management owns directly or indirectly 2.0% or more of the outstanding capital stock of
the Company.

(4) There are no voting trust holders of 5% or more.

(5) The Company is not aware of any voting trust agreement/s or similar agreement/s which
may result in a change in control of the Company.

(6) No change in control of the registrant has occurred since the beginning of its last fiscal
year.

(D) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Related party relationships exist when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly 
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the 
other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between 
and/or among entities which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or 



 February 2001 34 

between and/or among   the   reporting   enterprises   and its key   management   personnel, 
directors   or   its stockholders. Outstanding balances are settled through cash. 

A summary of the transactions and account balances with related parties follows: 

December 31, 2022 

Nature of 
Relationship 

Nature of 
Transaction 

Amount 
(current 

transaction) 
Outstanding 

balance Terms Conditions 

Major 
Shareholders 

Advances ₱26,500,000 ₱26,500,000 

Interest bearing; 
payable in cash; 

no scheduled 
repayment terms 

Unsecured 

PART V – CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company adheres to the principles of good governance as provided in its Manual on Corporate 
Governance (MCG).  The directors, officers and employees perform their duties and responsibilities in 
accordance with the mission and vision of the Company and the corporate practices pursuant to its 
Manual on Corporate Governance.  

Pursuant to its Manual on Corporate Governance, the Board organized the various committees 
composed of the following members: 

Audit Committee 
Chair:    Dr. Marissa A. Orillaza – Independent Director 
Members:  Dr. Edward A.  Chua – Independent Director 

Dr. Ma. Luisa S. Tan – Independent Director 
Ms. Joy C. Luna 
Dr. Roberto De Leon 

Nominations Committee 
Chair:    Dr. Ma. Luisa S. Tan – Independent Director 
Members: Dr. Edward A. Chua – Independent Director 

Dr. Marissa A. Orillaza – Independent Director 
Dr. Velma T. Chan 
Dr. Marietta T. Samoy 

Remuneration and Compensation Committee 
Chair: Dr. Ma. Luisa S. Tan – Independent Director 

Dr. Edward A. Chua – Independent Director 
Dr. Marissa A. Orillaza – Independent Director 
Dr. Evangeline Zozobrado 
Mrs. Neonita C. Antigua 

Corporate Governance Committee 
Chair:    Dr. Edward A. Chua – Independent Director 
Members: Dr. Marissa A. Orillaza – Independent Director 

Dr. Ma. Luisa S. Tan – Independent Director 
Dr. Felix P. Nolasco 
Dr. Julio L. Gonzalez 

Board Risk Oversight Committee 
Chair:  Dr. Edward A. Chua – Independent Director 
Members: Dr. Marissa A. Orillaza – Independent Director 

Dr. Ma. Luisa S. Tan – Independent Director 
Dr. Ma. Asuncion Hipolita B. Libre 
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Dr. Nicolas S. Molon 

There were no major deviations from the adopted Manual on Corporate Governance. 

The Independent directors have submitted their Certificates of Qualification as required by the SEC vis-
à-vis Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code.   

PART VI - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES 

(a) Exhibit

* 2022 Audited Financial Statements

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

DATE EVENT REPORTED 

January 8, 2022 Re damages sustained by the hospital building during Typhoon Odette 

February 12, 2022 Postponement of the Y2022 Annual Stockholders Meeting 

Amendment of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting Schedule in the Bylaws 

August 15, 2022 
(Annual Stockholders’ 
Meeting) 

Appointment of External Auditor for Y2022 

Election of Directors for Year 2022-2023 

Approval of the Y2021 Audited Financial Statements 

Election of Officers for Year 2022-2023 

September 10, 2022 Appointment of Board Committees 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Securities Regulation Code and Section 141 

of the Corporate Code of the Philippines, this amended annual report has been signed on behalf of the 

issuer, by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

MCARTHUR CONRADO A. SALONGA, JR. 
President  

MA. ASUNCION HIPOLITA B. LIBRE 
Corporate Secretary 

EVANGELINE Y. ZOZOBRADO 
Treasurer 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 15th day of August  2023, affiants exhibiting to me their 
Tax Identification Number (TIN)/Social Security System (SSS) ID Nos., as follows: 

AFFIANTS TIN/SSS Nos. 

McArthur Conrado A. 
Salonga Jr. 

185-815-297-000

Ma. Asuncion Hipolita B. 
Libre 

121-748-182-000

Evangeline Y. Zozobrado 133-733-843-000

NOTARY PUBLIC 

Doc. No. ______ 
Page No. ______ 
Book No. ______ 
Series of 2023. 

Upon the written request of the stockholder, the Company undertakes to furnish said 
stockholder a copy of SEC Form 17-A free of charge, except for exhibits attached thereto which 
shall be charged at cost.  Any written request for a copy of SEC Form 17-A shall be addressed 
as follows: 

Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Cebu Inc. 
N. Bacalso Avenue, Basak Pardo, Cebu City

Attention:  The Corporate Secretary
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